RFP14-2942R
Addendum 1
Page 7

[image: image1.png]


DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

GENERAL SERVICES DIVISION

STATE PROCUREMENT BUREAU


http://gsd.mt.gov/
 STEVE BULLOCK
MITCHELL BUILDING, ROOM 165
GOVERNOR 
STATE OF MONTANA
PO BOX 200135



          (406) 444-2575
HELENA, MONTANA 59620-0135

            (406) 444-2529  FAX

                            TTY Users-Dial 711

2/21/2014
STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM
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TITLE: MT Office of Public Instruction SharePoint Architecture Re-Design
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Rhonda R. Grandy
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP14-2942R  

	1. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
Please explain more about GEMS data warehouse tool? What is the primary functionality of this tool? Is that also a SharePoint 2010 portal?

A.
The GEMS data warehouse is located at http://gems.opi.mt.gov and is our state longitudinal data system for educational data.  There is online training available under the Training Center tab that will give more information.  GEMS is a web application built on SharePoint 2010, and is presented through UAG.


	2. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
Can you explain the complexity of the workflows (purchasing requisitions, external security processes) mentioned in the scope. Are they SharePoint Designer workflows?

A.
The mentioned workflows are not currently in production.  Rather, the OPI expects that the Offeror will design the workflows after the requirements are gathered.  Both workflows (purchasing requisitions and external security processes) are of medium complexity, including routing paths based on user choices and associated forms.


	3. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
What is the extent of customization in the current sites? Please give a few examples.
A.
The GEMS data warehouse is heavily customized, while both the external collaboration sites and InSight are primarily out of the box.

	4. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
Are there any custom objects / features in the existing sites? If yes, mention a few.  
A.
The custom components of our GEMS Sharepoint environment include 3 content types, 13 visual web parts, 6 page layouts, 3 master pages, and approximately 85 pages and a mega menu.  In addition, the GEMS Sharepoint environment has installed features for Nintex Workflow 2010 and Nintex Workflow 2010 Enterprise Reporting. THE GEMS installation will only be upgraded to SharePoint 2013.  However, the Intranet and external collaboration sites are not customized at all, other than a simple master page.

	5. 
	15
	3.1.1.3
	Q.
How many sites are involved in the migration? What is the expected size of the data? Are there only 54 sites and 6 GB data in total? Do you have any custom SharePoint components (WebParts, Timer Jobs, Event Receivers, Features etc) that also need to be migrated?
A.
There is one web application, containing 56 site collections and 6 GB of data in total for InSight.  Our current design gives every division and project its own site collection under the main web application.  Additionally, the GEMS SharePoint environment includes 5 web applications in TEST, 3 web applications in PROD, 3 site collections, 19 sites and approximately 15 GB of data. The custom components of our GEMS Sharepoint environment include 3 content types, 13 visual web parts, 6 page layouts, 3 master pages, and approximately 85 pages and a mega menu.  In addition, the GEMS Sharepoint environment has installed features for Nintex Workflow 2010 and Nintex Workflow 2010 Enterprise Reporting.  The current Intranet and external collaborations sites are out of the box and not customized at all other than a simple master page.

	6. 
	16
	3.2.2
	Q.
For extranet sites, do the users belong to OPI domain or do they use any other authentication method?

A.
Yes, for the extranet sites the users currently belong to OPI domain. But the OPI would like to move the site into the State domain and wants to analyze where the authentication store will lie.

	7. 
	16-17
	3.3
	Q.
Please provide an approximate number for the attendees / trainees who are likely to participate in the technical trainings and General staff trainings.

A.
For the technical training, the OPI anticipates having 4-6 employees participating in training.  For general staff training, there will most likely be around 25 employees in training sessions.

	8. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
We would like to clarify the use of the term “upgrade” within the RFP. In some cases the term is used in a way that suggests an in-pla21ce upgrade of SharePoint 2010 – 2013 (Section 3.2, Paragraph 1). In other cases, it seems that there is a reference of data migration from the existing SharePoint 2010 environment to a new SharePoint 2013 environment (Section 3.2.1). Does OPI have specific expectations on how the actual “upgrade” will be performed?

A.
This is one of the items that the OPI expects analysis on from the Offeror.  The OPI has not formed specific expectations on how the upgrade will be performed at this time – whether through an in-place upgrade or a migration to an environment.

	9. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
GEMS Data Warehouse

a.       Are any of SharePoint’s BI capabilities used within the GEMS Data Warehouse?

b.      Or is SharePoint merely the vehicle for delivery, and pages and charts point to some other backend system?

A.
Yes, SharePoint’s BI capabilities are used within the GEMS Data Warehouse – see http://gems.opi.mt.gov for more information on this.  The Training Center tab includes training on some of the BI capabilities.  

	10. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
SharePoint Custom Development

a.       Are any custom/third-party solutions are installed?

b.      Has OPI had any custom (requiring .NET code) pages/solutions developed? Were those developed in-house or by an external vendor? If by external vendor, do they support those customizations or is OPI able to support them?
A.
Yes, the GEMS Sharepoint environment has installed features for Nintex Workflow 2010 and Nintex Workflow 2010 Enterprise Reporting.  In addition, GEMS is a third-party solution that was designed for the OPI.  The OPI does currently support GEMS’ customization.  


	11. 
	21
	5.0
	Q.
On site presence will be require during the kickoff, initial analysis and the training. Is the expectation that travel and expenses should be part of the response capped at $250,000?

A.
Yes, travel and expenses are considered part of the response.


	12. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
The RFP states that the “Connect to Office” feature works inconsistently for users across the agency. Can you describe what kinds of problems users have had with this feature?

A.
Currently documents saved in Office applications can’t be directly saved to a SharePoint library by all users through Sharepoint’s “Connect to Office” feature.  Additionally, the SharePoint Sites shortcut or the added libraries don’t show up in the list of Favorites under Windows Explorer for some users, and for others sometimes the shortcut and/or libraries will show up, but at variable times.  We see this problem across both Office 2010 and Office 2013 platforms.

	13. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
In regard to the “Connect to Office” feature and use of MS Office in general, can you verify that OPI users will require the ability to create and edit documents using Office desktop applications and not just Office Web Apps? Will OPI users need to use Office Web Apps to create and edit documents in addition to desktop Office applications?

A.
OPI users will require the ability to create and edit documents using Office desktop applications.  We do not currently use Office Web Apps at the OPI. 

	14. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
SharePoint 2010 had a “Granular Restore” capability to restore specific libraries instead of an entire site collection. Did OPI use this Granular Store capability? If so, what problems did you encounter when trying to restore specific libraries?

A.
The OPI has never been able to get backups to work successfully through Sharepoint. The databases are currently backed up at the SQL level. Attempts to restore at the Site Collection level through Sharepoint have appeared on the surface to work, with Sharepoint returning a result of the restore as successful, but when going back in to the Site Collection, it is empty and there is no data restored to it.  OPI has not attempted to restore at the library level, only site collection. To date, the OPI has only been able to do a complete web application content database restore at the SQL level at this point, and has not been able to do successful SharePoint level backups or restores.

	15. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
The RFP states that OPI has not implemented any workflows successfully. Were there any technical issues that prevented OPI from implementing the workflows? Or was it just a matter of training or lack of resources to implement the workflows? If any technical issues did arise, can you please describe them?

A.
To our knowledge, there were not technical issues that prevented OPI from implementing the workflows.  It was simply a matter of lack of training and not enough technical resources to complete the tasks successfully.

	16. 
	12
	3.0.1
	Q.
Does OPI have a preference for using Nintex workflows or native SharePoint 2013 workflows? Are there any known features offered by Nintex that the OPI requires that are not offered by native SharePoint 2013 workflows? Aside from email notifications and other standard workflow features, are there any special workflow features that the OPI requires?

A.
The OPI would prefer to use the native SharePoint 2013 workflows.  There are no known special workflow features that the OPI requires, but requirements for the two identified workflows have not been completed at this time.

	17. 
	15
	3.1.1.3
	Q.
In regard to the migration of existing sites, can you please clarify the following items:

· What Add-ons or Third party components are currently in use in the site collections?

· What information can be provided in regards to My Sites usage and Business Intelligence usage within the Intranet environment?

· How many users will the Intranet SharePoint farm support?

· How many servers are in their current Intranet farm?

Is an incremental migration of site collections permissible (e.g. one site collection at a time)?

A.
Third party components are only used in GEMS and include Nintex (see answer to question 10).  There is currently no usage of Business Intelligence within the Intranet environment.  MySites is currently only turned on for the Connect to Office functionality to work on the Intranet site. The Intranet SharePoint farm should support 200 users.  There are three environments (DEV, TEST, and PROD) with one web server and one database server in each environment for the Intranet environment – the Intranet environment is not configured as a farm at this time. Yes, an incremental migration of site collections is permissible.

	18. 
	16
	3.2.4
	Q.
The RFP states that OPI staff will deploy and configure SharePoint 2013 into the Test environment. Will the Offeror be responsible for deploying and configuring SharePoint 2013 in the Dev environment? Will there be three environments (DEV, TEST, and PROD) for each SharePoint farm (e.g. for Intranet and for GEMS)?

A.
No, the OPI will be responsible for deploying and configuring SharePoint 2013 into the Dev environment (see section 3.2), with support from the Offeror.  Yes, there will be three environments for each SharePoint farm – DEV, TEST, and PROD.

	19. 
	17
	3.3.1
	Q.
Can you provide an estimate of the number of participants in the Technical training sessions? Do you prefer to have Microsoft certified courseware for this training or informal knowledge transfer?

A.
There will be 4-6 participants in the Technical training sessions.  The OPI prefers informal knowledge transfer for this training.

	20. 
	17
	3.3.2
	Q.
Can you provide an estimate of the number of participants in the General Staff training sessions?

A.
There will be an estimated 25 participants in the general staff training sessions.

	21. 
	13
	3.0.2
	Q.      All the equipment is housed at the State of MT datacenter. Would the State of Montana’s OPI be willing to move their equipment to an alternative location? Understanding the OPI security and architecture?
A. No, the OPI cannot move their equipment to an alternative location. 
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